
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS 
THE ASSISTANTSECRETARY 

February 15. 20 18 

Mac I leavener. Jr. 
President 
Trinity Bapti st College 
800 Hammond Blvd. 
Jacksonville. FL 3222 1 

Dear President Hleavener: 

I write in response to your February 9. 20 16 letter lo the U.S. Department of Education's Office 
for Civil Rights (OCR). in which you requested a religious exemption for Trinity Baptist College 
(College) or Jacksonville, Florida, from Title IX or the Educational Amendments of 1972 (Title 
IX). 20 U.S.C. § 168 1. OCR sent a response on July 22, 2016, to request additional information. 
and has not received a reply. However, upon fu rther consideration, we have determined that 
your request letter provides sufficient information for OCR to acknowledge the College's 
exemption from the requirements ofTitle IX as detailed below. 

Title IX prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in any education program or activity 
operated by a recipient o r Federal financial assistance. Title IX and its implementing regulation 
at 34 C.F.R. § I06.1 2 provide that Title IX docs not apply to an educational institution that is 
contro lled by a re ligious organization to the extent that the application or Title IX would be 
inconsistent with the controlling organization's religious tenets. Therefore, such educational 
institutions may req uest an exemption from Title IX by identify ing the provisions of Title IX that 
confli ct with a spec ific tenet of the religious organization. The request must identify the 
re ligious organization that contro ls the educational institution. and specify the tenets or that 
organization and the provisions of the law or regulation that conflict with those tenets. An 
institution may be considered controlled by a religious organization if it is a school or 
department of divinity. 

Your request letter states that the College "is controlled by and affiliatedwi th the Trinity Baptist 
Church of Jacksonville. Inc." Your letter also slates that the College's " identity as a Christian 
insti tution is central to all that we do and teach'' and that "[t]he Church. and the College itself. 
believe in the incrrancy and truth of Scripture as presented in the Hloly Bible." 

Your letter requests exemptions from certain provisions of Title IX and its implementing 
regulations to the extent that application of the provisions confl ict with the College's "biblical 
beliefs regarding gender and sexual morality." In support of this request, your letter cites the 
Bible and states that "God has commanded that no intimate sexual activ ity should be engaged in 
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o utside o f marriage between a man and a woman. We believe that any fo rm of homosexuality, 
lesbiani sm, bisexuality. trans-sexuality, bestialit y, incest, forn icatio n, adultery, and pornography 
arc s infu l perversions o f God 's g ift o r sex." Your letter also states that the Co llege " reject[s] all 
attempts at constructing one 's own sexua l iden tity by medically altering the human body, cross 
dress ing, or s imilar practicing behaviors characteri stic of the opposite sex as morally 
objecti onable and sinful." 

Yo ur letter states that, for the above reasons, the College is requesting an exemption from the 
fo llowing regulatory provis ions to the extent that they are interpreted to conflict with the 
College's "biblical belie fs regarding gender and sexual morality:" 

• 34 C.F.R. § 106.2 1 (governing admission) ; 

• 34 C.F.R. § 106.31((b)(4) (govern ing d iffe rent rules of behavior o r sanctions); 
• 34 C .F.R. § 106.32 (governing housing); 

• 34 C.F..R. § 106.33 (governing comparable facilities); 

• 34 C .F.R. § 106.40 (governing marital or parental status); 

• 34 C .F.R. § 106.41 (governing athletics); 

• 34 C .F.R. § I 06.5 1 (governing employment); and 
• 34 C.F.R. § I 06.57 (governing marita l or parental s tatus) . 

The Co llege is exempt rrom these provis ions to the extent that compl iance would conflict with 
the control ling organization 's religious tenets. 

Please note that thi s le tte r sho uld not be construed lo grant exemption from the requirements o r 
Title IX and the regulation other than as slated above. In the event that OC R receives a 
complaint against your institution, we are obligated to determine ini tiall y whether the allegatio ns 
fall within the exemption here recognized. 

I hope this letter fully responds to your request. 1 f you have any fu rther questions, please do no t 
hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely. 

Candice Jackson 
/\cling Assistant Secretary for C ivil Rights 




